2006

Welden L. Daines v. Richard B. Vincent and ASC Group: Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF THE SUPREME COURT

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to UTAH CODE §78-2-2(3)(j)(2002).

ISSUES AND STANDARDS OF REVIEW

ISSUE I: Was Daines' Notice of Appeal timely filed?¹ Standard of Appellate Review: This is an *original* determination made by this Court as a matter of law.²

ISSUE II: Is Daines entitled to attorney fees and costs for having to oppose Defendants' motion to dismiss Daines' notice of appeal? Standard of Appellate Review: This is an *original* determination made by this Court as a matter of law.³

ISSUE III: Did the trial court erroneously fail to recognize the different legal capacities of Defendant ASC?⁴ Standard of Appellate Review: Correctness: A directed verdict, as well the determination of a person's legal capacity, are legal determinations reviewed for correctness,

¹. Defendants moved to dismiss Plaintiff's initial Notice of Appeal on the ground that it was "too early" and thus untimely. Plaintiff opposed such motion and moved for attorney fees and costs for having to respond. By Order dated October 23, 2006, this Court deferred ruling on both motions until plenary presentation on the merits. The Court invited the parties to address the matters in the briefing and argument, as well as to address the question whether the procedural posture of Beddoes v. Giffin, 2006 UT App 130, 2006 WL 829112 (March 30, 2006)(Unpublished Opinion) pending before this Court as No. 2006, 0389, was distinguishable.

². State ex rel. S.M., 2006 UT 75, ¶6, 2006 WL 3488945; ProMax Development Corp. v. Raile, 2000 UT 4, ¶11, 998 P.2d 254.

³. See Warner v. DMG Color, Inc., 2000 UT 102, ¶ 24, 20 P.3d 868 (attorney fees and costs awarded by the Court under UTAH R. APP. P. 33 and 34).

⁴. Issue Preserved: (R. 1727, from p.286, line 5 through p.291, line 14, inclusive--Trial Transcript)(Mr. Martinez' argument to Judge Lewis in opposition to Defendants' motions for directed verdicts).

Daines also made this argument earlier in the litigation in conjunction with his *successful* opposition to Defendants' *second* motion for summary judgment. (R. 827-917, 831-32, Plaintiff's Memorandum in Opposition to Defendants' Renewed Motion for Summary Judgment, pp. 5-6). Judge Lewis denied Defendants' motion. (R. 968-72 (*Memorandum Decision* by Judge Lewis denying Defendants' second motion for summary judgment), at 970, p.3), Addendum Exh. 1 (Judge Lewis *Memorandum Decision*).

with no deference given to the trial court.⁵

ISSUE IV: Did the trial court erroneously reject Daines' contention that a certain "release" was unambiguous, and that the parties thereby did not intend to exonerate Defendant ASC in its independent, pre-Surgical Center, legal capacity?⁶ Standard of Appellate Review: Correctness: "Whether an ambiguity exists in a contract is a question of law" reviewed for correctness.⁷ Moreover, a directed verdict is a legal determination reviewed for correctness, with no deference given to the trial court.⁸

ISSUE V: Did the trial court erroneously accept Defendants' contention that a certain "release" was not ambiguous, and that the parties intended thereby to exonerate Defendant ASC in its independent, pre-Surgical Center, legal capacity?⁹ Standard of Appellate Review:

⁵. Management Comm. of Graystone Pines Homeowners Ass'n v. Graystone Pines, Inc., 652 P.2d 896, 897-98 (Utah 1982)("In directing a verdict, the court is not free to weigh the evidence and thus invade the province of the jury, whose prerogative it is to judge the facts."); see also Saleh v. Farmers Ins. Exchange, 2006 UT 1, ¶ 14, 133 P.3d 428; State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994).

⁶. Issue Preserved: Daines made this argument earlier in the litigation in conjunction with his *successful* opposition to Defendants' *first* motion for summary judgment. (R. 122-179, 131-32, Plaintiff's Memorandum in Opposition to the Motion for Summary Judgment by Defendant ASC Group L.C., pp. 10-11). Judge Noel denied Defendants' motion. (R. 272-76 (*Minute Entry* by Judge Noel Denying Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment), at 272, p.1), Addendum Exh. 2 (Judge Noel *Minute Entry*); (R. 269-71 (*Order* by Judge Noel Denying Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment), at 269-70, pp.1-2), Addendum Exh. 3 (Judge Noel *Order*).

⁷. Alf v. State Farm Fire & Cas. Ins. Co., 850 P.2d 1272, 1274 (Utah 1993).

⁸. Management Comm. of Graystone Pines Homeowners Ass'n v. Graystone Pines, Inc., 652 P.2d 896, 897-98 (Utah 1982)("In directing a verdict, the court is not free to weigh the evidence and thus invade the province of the jury, whose prerogative it is to judge the facts."); see also Saleh v. Farmers Ins. Exchange, 2006 UT 1, ¶ 14, 133 P.3d 428; State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994).

⁹. Issue Preserved: (R. 1727, p.299, ll.14-25, p.300, ll.1-6--Trial Transcript)(Mr. Martinez' argument to Judge Lewis in opposition to Defendants' motions for directed verdicts, pointing out ambiguities in regard to parties, claims and amounts).

Daines made this argument earlier in the litigation in conjunction with his *successful* opposition to Defendants' *first* motion for summary judgment. (R. 122-179, 131-32, Plaintiff's Memorandum in Opposition to the Motion for Summary Judgment by Defendant ASC Group L.C., pp. 10-11). Judge Noel denied Defendants' motion. (R. 272-76 (*Minute Entry* by Judge Noel Denying Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment), at 272, p.1), Addendum Exh. 2 (Judge Noel *Minute Entry*); (R. 269-71 (*Order* by Judge Noel Denying Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment), at 269-70, pp.1-2), Addendum Exh. 3 (Judge Noel *Order*).

Correctness: "Whether an ambiguity exists in a contract is a question of law" reviewed for correctness.¹⁰ Moreover, a directed verdict is a legal determination reviewed for correctness, with no deference given to the trial court.¹¹

ISSUE VI: Did the trial court erroneously conclude that a so-called "integration" clause in the "Release" related to Defendant ASC in its independent, pre-Surgical Center, legal capacity?¹² Standard of Appellate Review: Correctness: A directed verdict is a legal determination reviewed for correctness, with no deference given to the trial court.¹³

ISSUE VII: Did the trial court err in directing a verdict against Plaintiff Daines on all his claims against Defendant Vincent in Vincent's personal capacity?¹⁴ Standard of Appellate Review: Correctness: A directed verdict is a legal determination reviewed for correctness,

Daines also made this argument earlier in the litigation in conjunction with his *successful* opposition to Defendants' *second* motion for summary judgment. (R. 827-917, 831-32, Plaintiff's Memorandum in Opposition to Defendants' Renewed Motion for Summary Judgment, pp. 5-6). Judge Lewis denied Defendants' motion. (R. 968-72 (*Memorandum Decision* by Judge Lewis denying Defendants' second motion for summary judgment), at 970, p.3), Addendum Exh. 1 (Judge Lewis *Memorandum Decision*).

¹⁰. Alf v. State Farm Fire & Cas. Ins. Co., 850 P.2d 1272, 1274 (Utah 1993).

¹¹. Management Comm. of Graystone Pines Homeowners Ass'n v. Graystone Pines, Inc., 652 P.2d 896, 897-98 (Utah 1982) ("In directing a verdict, the court is not free to weigh the evidence and thus invade the province of the jury, whose prerogative it is to judge the facts."); see also Saleh v. Farmers Ins. Exchange, 2006 UT 1, ¶ 14, 133 P.3d 428; State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994).

¹². Issue Preserved: (R. 1727, p.299, ll.19--Trial Transcript)(During Mr. Martinez' argument to Judge Lewis in opposition to Defendants' motions for directed verdicts, pointing out ambiguities in regard to parties, claims and amounts, Judge Lewis stated: "It's very broad and all encompassing," referring to the "integration" clause of the "Release").

¹³. Management Comm. of Graystone Pines Homeowners Ass'n v. Graystone Pines, Inc., 652 P.2d 896, 897-98 (Utah 1982) ("In directing a verdict, the court is not free to weigh the evidence and thus invade the province of the jury, whose prerogative it is to judge the facts."); see also Saleh v. Farmers Ins. Exchange, 2006 UT 1, ¶ 14, 133 P.3d 428; State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994).

¹⁴. Issue Preserved: (R. 1727, p.271, ll.23-25, p.272, ll.1-25--Trial Transcript)(Mr. Martinez' argument to Judge Lewis in opposition to Defendants' motions for directed verdicts).

with no deference given to the trial court.¹⁵

ISSUE VIII: Did the trial court err in directing a verdict against Plaintiff Daines on his claims for fraud and punitive damages against both defendants?¹⁶ Standard of Appellate Review: Correctness: A directed verdict is a legal determination reviewed for correctness, with no deference given to the trial court.¹⁷

ISSUE IX: Did the trial court err in denying Plaintiff Daines' motion *in limine* for an order to admit Judge Hilder's decision in a factually similar case finding that Vincent was not a "credible witness" and had "convenient lapses of memory"?¹⁸ Standard of Appellate Review: Correctness: A "trial court's decision on ... [a] motion *in limine* [excluding evidence] based wholly on its legal conclusion" interpreting the Rules of Evidence is subject to the correctness standard of appellate review.¹⁹ Under a correctness standard, "the appellate court decides the matter for itself and does not defer in any degree to the trial judge's determination

¹⁵. Management Comm. of Graystone Pines Homeowners Ass'n v. Graystone Pines, Inc., 652 P.2d 896, 897-98 (Utah 1982)("In directing a verdict, the court is not free to weigh the evidence and thus invade the province of the jury, whose prerogative it is to judge the facts."); see also Saleh v. Farmers Ins. Exchange, 2006 UT 1, ¶ 14, 133 P.3d 428; State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994).

¹⁶. Issue Preserved: Judge Lewis dismissed the fraud and punitive damages claims out of hand, simply saying in each case, "They're gone." (Fraud: R. 1727, p.279, ll.9-11, 299, ll.24-25, p.300, l.1; Punitives: R. 1727, p.294, ll.19-21, 23-24)

¹⁷. Management Comm. of Graystone Pines Homeowners Ass'n v. Graystone Pines, Inc., 652 P.2d 896, 897-98 (Utah 1982)("In directing a verdict, the court is not free to weigh the evidence and thus invade the province of the jury, whose prerogative it is to judge the facts."); see also Saleh v. Farmers Ins. Exchange, 2006 UT 1, ¶ 14, 133 P.3d 428; State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994).

¹⁸. Issue Preserved: (R. 571-74 (Plaintiff's Motion *in Limine* for an Order to Admit Judge Hilder's Decision, with Limiting Instructions); (R. 575-616, at 590-603, Exhibit A to Daines' Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Motion *in Limine*, Judge Hilder's Decision, pp. 5-7, 10), Addendum Exh. 4 (Judge Hilder's Decision)

¹⁹. Ford v. American Express Financial Advisors, Inc., 2004 UT 70, ¶ 33, 98 P.3d 15.

of law."²⁰

ISSUE X: Did the trial court err in directing a verdict against Plaintiff Daines and thereby deprive Daines of his constitutional rights to a Trial by Jury and to his "day in court," under the Due Process and Open Courts Clauses of the Utah Constitution?²¹ Standard of Appellate Review: Correctness. A directed verdict is a determination as a matter of law reviewed for correctness, with no deference given to the trial court.²²

**CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES AND RULES
OF CENTRAL IMPORTANCE TO THIS APPEAL**

UTAH CONST. art. I, §7. [Due process of law]

No person shall be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law.

UTAH CONST. art. I, §10. [Trial by jury]

In capital cases the right of trial by jury shall remain inviolate. In courts of general jurisdiction, except in capital cases, a jury shall consist of eight jurors. In courts of inferior jurisdiction, a jury shall consist of four jurors. In criminal cases the verdict shall be unanimous. In civil cases three-fourths of the jurors may find a verdict. A jury in civil cases shall be waived unless demanded.

UTAH CONST. art. I, §11. [Courts open--Redress of injuries]

All courts shall be open, and every person, for an injury done to him in his person, property or reputation, shall have remedy in due course of law, which shall be administered without denial or unnecessary delay; and no person shall be barred from prosecuting or defending before any tribunal in this State, by himself or counsel, any civil cause to which he is a party.

UTAH CODE § 78-27-42. Release of one defendant does not discharge other defendants.

A release given by a person seeking recovery to one or more defendants does not discharge any other defendant unless the release so provides.

²⁰. State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994).

²¹. Issue Preserved: (R. 1727, p.300, ll.15-18--Trial Transcript)(Mr. Martinez' argument to Judge Lewis in opposition to Defendants' motions for directed verdicts)("...Your Honor, we're asking the jury to protect him.").

²². Management Comm. of Graystone Pines Homeowners Ass'n v. Graystone Pines, Inc., 652 P.2d 896, 897-98 (Utah 1982)("In directing a verdict, the court is not free to weigh the evidence and thus invade the province of the jury, whose prerogative it is to judge the facts."); see also Saleh v. Farmers Ins. Exchange, 2006 UT 1, ¶ 14, 133 P.3d 428; State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the case, course of proceedings, disposition in the court below

This case presents the question whether a trial court judge can deprive a plaintiff of a jury trial simply because the trial judge believes that the plaintiff is asking for too much.

Statement of Facts

A. Parties

Plaintiff-Appellant Welden Daines (hereinafter "Daines" or "Plaintiff Daines") is a retired Certified Public Accountant who has provided accounting and tax preparation and investment consulting services to a number of physicians during his career. There are two defendants in this case: Defendant ASC Group, L.C., ("ASC") is a Utah limited liability company. Defendant Richard Vincent ("Vincent") is being sued individually in his personal capacity. (R. 1064-Stipulated Statement, p.1)

Different Legal Capacities of ASC

Before the Surgical Center herein was created as a legal or physical entity, Defendant ASC existed and operated as an independent legal entity in the business of organizing, developing and managing surgical centers and surgical hospitals throughout the country. (R. 1064-Stipulated Statement, p.1) This legal capacity of ASC will be referred to as "*ASC in its independent, pre-Surgical Center, legal capacity*" or "*pre-Surgical Center ASC*".

After the Surgical Center herein was created, and as a result of such formation, Defendant ASC acquired the following *additional* legal capacities:

1. "Member" (owner of 20% of the Surgical Center ownership units, in the form of

Class II shares)²³

2. "Founder," including the right to subscribe to and receive up to three "founder" shares;²⁴
3. "Manager" (ASC is the external Management Company for the Center);²⁵
4. One of 5 "managers" of the Center (ASC as internal manager of the Center);²⁶
5. Secretary-Treasurer of the Board of Managers of the Center;²⁷ and
6. Secretary-Treasurer of the Operating Entity Company of the Center.²⁸

This legal capacity of ASC, in the aggregate, will be referred to as "*ASC in its Surgical Center legal capacity*" or "*Surgical Center ASC*".

Different Legal Capacities of Defendant Vincent

Vincent was a member of ASC Group and served for a period of time as Chairman of its Board. (R. 1064-Stipulated Statement, p.1) He thereby acted for and on behalf *ASC in*

²³. "West Valley Surgical Center, LLC., a Utah limited liability company ("WVSC" or the "Company"), will utilize a capital structure with 2 classes of units. Class I units will be reserved for physicians while Class II units will be held by ASC Group ("ASC"), respectively. (p.1, ¶1)

....

ASC Ownership: ASC Group will own 20.00% of the initial ownership units of the Company. (p.3, ¶9)" (R. 1619, Stipulated Trial Exh. 8, p.1, ¶1 and p.3, ¶9), Addendum Exh. 5 (February 12, 2001 Term Sheet)

²⁴. "**Founders units:** To provide leadership and direction to the project -- as has been done to date -- the Company will enlist the support of up to ten individuals or entities (**including ASC Group**) as "Founders" of the project. ... Founders will be given the right to subscribe to and receive up to three units (including their Founders units) prior to the sale of any units to a physician who is not a Founder." (R. 1619, Stipulated Trial Exh. 8, p.2, ¶5), Addendum Exh. 5 (February 12, 2001 Term Sheet)(Emphasis added).

....

"ASC Ownership: ... ASC will purchase its Founders units at \$7,000 and 19.00 additional units at \$8500 each during the PPM offering period." (R. 1619, Stipulated Trial Exh. 8, p.3, ¶9), Addendum Exh. 5 (February 12, 2001 Term Sheet).

²⁵. "**Management Agreement:** ... The services included in the management agreement and for which ASC will oversee all day-to-day operations includes ... [extensive management duties itemized and management fees set out]... ." (R. 1619, Stipulated Trial Exh. 8, pp.3-4, ¶12), Addendum Exh. 5 (February 12, 2001 Term Sheet)

²⁶. "**Board of Managers:** The Board of Managers will oversee and direct the business of the surgical facility. It will be comprised of five seats, four of which will be held by physicians and **one by ASC group.**" (R. 1619, Stipulated Trial Exh. 8, p.2, ¶7), Addendum Exh. 5 (February 12, 2001 Term Sheet)(Emphasis added)

²⁷. "**Board of Managers:** ... **ASC Group** will serve as the Secretary/Treasurer of both the Board and the Company." (R. 1619, Stipulated Trial Exh. 8, p.2, ¶7, Addendum Exh. 5 (February 12, 2001 Term Sheet)(Emphasis added)

²⁸. Ibid.

its independent, pre-Surgical Center, legal capacity. This legal capacity of Mr. Vincent will be referred to as its "*Vincent as a representative of ASC*". Vincent is also being sued in his individual personal capacity. (R. 1064-Stipulated Statement, p.1) This legal capacity of Mr. Vincent will be referred to as "*Vincent in his individual personal capacity*".

B. MOU Contract between Daines and Defendants ASC and Vincent

On September 22, 2000, Daines and the Defendants executed a "Memorandum of Understanding and Non-disclosure Agreement" (hereinafter "the MOU")²⁹ whereby Daines agreed to provide the Defendants with information about certain physicians he knew who were interested in establishing a new surgical center in West Valley City, Utah (hereinafter "the Surgical Center"). Daines also agreed to provide professional assistance to help the Defendants establish the Surgical Center.³⁰

In exchange for the information and professional assistance Daines agreed to provide, Defendant ASC in its independent, pre-Surgical Center, legal capacity and Vincent personally, agreed in the MOU contract to pay Daines \$150,000.³¹ Daines provided

²⁹. (R. 1619, Stipulated Trial Exh. 2), Addendum Exh. 6 (MOU)

³⁰. (Examination of Mr. Daines by Mr. Colessides)

"Q How did you participate in the feasibility and due diligence phase of the project as directed by paragraph 3 of the agreement?

A Well, I gathered information and submitted it to the ASC to the fellow named Eric Wold, who was their feasibility analyst in Park City. I helped gather the information from the doctors. When the doctors were delinquent in furnishing the information, I would call Dr. Burrows or Dr. McCray or call the doctor myself. I worked with Bob Smith quite extensively on this, and we were in contact almost daily."

(R. 1726, p.53, ll.3-13--Trial Transcript)(referring to R. 1619, Stipulated Trial Exh. 2), Addendum Exh. 6 (MOU)

³¹. (Examination of Mr. Daines by Mr. Colessides)

"Q Did Mr. Vincent say anything about the proposal?

A He-I handed it to him and I said take time to read this. And when he got all through he made the comment, a couple of comments, one that it was pretty heavy, \$150,000 he thought was a lot of money. And at that point I said "Well, if you don't like it forget it, you know, I can't make you sign it. If you don't want it I'll take it someplace else." The other and - later on after they signed it he indicated that I needed to pay Bob Smith and I said no."

Defendants with the list of physicians interested in creating the surgical center.³² Daines also arranged meetings between Defendants and physicians and generally helped in the organization, formation and development of the Surgical Center. Daines testified that he therefore was owed \$150,000 by Defendants because he had performed his obligations under the MOU contract.³³

C. Eight-Shares Agreement between Daines and Defendants ASC and Vincent

On December 13, 2000, before the Surgical Center had been established, Daines met with Defendant Vincent. Defendant Vincent made an oral proposal, which Daines accepted, that if Daines would forego the \$150,000 compensation from Defendants to which Daines

(R. 1726, p.51, ll.13-21--Trial Transcript)(referring to R. 1619, Stipulated Trial Exh. 2), Addendum Exh. 6 (MOU)

³². (Examination of Daines by Mr. Colessides)

"Q What was the next thing you did in connection with the Memorandum of Understanding agreement?

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