2006

Welden L. Daines v. Richard B. Vincent and ASC Group, LC: Brief of Appellees

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Release is clear and unambiguous on its face, and discharged all of Daines' claims against ASC Group. The Release discharged all of the "members" of West Valley Surgical Center, LLC. It is undisputed that ASC Group was one of approximately twenty members of the limited liability company when the Release was signed, and that Daines knew of ASC Group's status as a member prior to signing the Release.

On its face, the Release applies to any claims arising out of services Daines performed relating to the Surgical Center, including any services he provided during the due diligence, acquisition of real estate, organization, development, and operation of the Surgical Center. The plain language of the Release further applied to encompass and satisfy any prior agreements Daines may have had with members of the Surgical Center, including ASC Group. Whether this language is labeled as an "integration clause" or a "scope" clause, its effect is to discharge the alleged agreement with ASC Group to give Daines eight Shares of the Surgical Center.

There is no legal distinction between "pre-Surgical Center ASC" and "Surgical Center ASC" insofar as the terms of the Release are concerned because the scope of the Release expressly includes both "pre-Surgical Center" services (due diligence,

¹⁵ A copy of the \$6,000 check from West Valley Surgical Center, LLC may be found at Addendum Exhibit 15 to Appellant's Brief, and a copy of the \$50,000 check from Boyer may be found at Addendum Exhibit 13 to Appellant's Brief.

organization, and development) and “post-Surgical Center” services (acquisition of real estate and operation of the Surgical Center). Daines’ argument regarding the purportedly different legal capacities of ASC Group was raised for the first time on appeal and has no support in the evidence.

The trial court gave Daines the opportunity to present whatever evidence he had to prove his alternative interpretation of the language of the Release. Daines failed to present any evidence, let alone “reasonable and plausible” evidence, to support an alternative interpretation. Daines did not testify about his own interpretation. The invoice Daines points to as supportive of his interpretation is inconsistent with the responsive letter from the Surgical Center and the express language of the Release Daines signed. The trial court properly determined that there was no reasonable and plausible extrinsic evidence to establish an ambiguity, and that the Release applied, as a matter of law, to discharge Daines’ claims against ASC Group.

The trial court was also correct in granting a directed verdict on Daines’ claims against Vincent, individually. There is no evidence in the record to support a claim that Vincent promised as an individual to give Daines eight Shares in the Surgical Center. The only evidence offered by Daines was that Vincent, as Chairman of the Board, made the promise on behalf of ASC Group. Vincent did not personally own any Shares and, according to the organizational documents of the Surgical Center, could not have purchased or owned eight Shares as an individual.

The directed verdict on Daines’ claim for fraud and punitive damages should also be upheld. Daines failed to introduce any evidence that Defendants did not intend to

honor the alleged promise to give Daines eight Shares. The only evidence cited by Daines—the later organizational documents Daines helped negotiate that did not allow for Daines to hold eight Shares—is not evidence of the intention of ASC Group at the time the promise was allegedly made. Moreover, Daines failed to present evidence that he reasonably and detrimentally relied on the promise. Once it became apparent to Daines that he could not hold and would not receive eight Shares, there was nothing to prevent him from asserting his claim to \$150,000 under the MOU (until such time as he signed the Release).

Daines argues that by granting any of the directed verdicts, the trial court deprived him of his constitutional rights to his day in court and/or to a trial by jury. The grant of a directed verdict in accordance with Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 50(a) and the standards articulated by this Court after the plaintiff has had an opportunity to present his case-in-chief, does not violate the constitution.

This Court should also affirm the trial court's order excluding all references to the *Libscomb* Order at trial. As a threshold matter, Daines' briefing on the issue is inadequate, and this Court should decline to even address it. On the merits, the *Libscomb* Order is inadmissible under Utah Rules of Evidence 402, 403, 404, 608, 801 and/or 802. Even if the *Libscomb* Order were admissible, however, any error was harmless because Vincent was never called as a witness at trial, and his credibility was never put at issue.

Finally, this Court should deny Appellant's request for sanctions. Appellees' motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction was brought in good faith, and in accordance with controlling law. Although that motion has now been withdrawn as

moot, it was properly asserted at the time and was not frivolous or asserted for the purpose of delay.

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DIRECTED A VERDICT ON DAINES' CLAIMS AGAINST ASC GROUP BECAUSE THE RELEASE DISCHARGED ALL OF THESE CLAIMS.

Daines' arguments regarding the meaning and effect of the Release are somewhat confusing and contradictory. He argues at various points:

- The Release is unenforceable because there was no meeting of the minds on the identity of the parties. (Appellant's Br. 33-34.) This issue was not raised at trial and it is not properly before the Court on appeal. *See Smith v. Four Corners Mental Health Ctr.*, 2003 UT 23, ¶ 19, 70 P.3d 904, 911 (quoting *Treff v. Hinckley*, 2001 UT 50, ¶ 9 n. 4, 26 P.3d 212) ("We will not address any new arguments raised for the first time on appeal."').¹⁶
- The Release is **unambiguous** on its face and does not discharge ASC Group in its "pre-Surgical Center ASC" legal capacity. (Appellant's Br. 35-37.)
- Interpreted with the aid of extrinsic evidence, the Release is **unambiguous** and does not discharge ASC Group in its "pre-Surgical Center ASC" legal capacity. (Appellant's Br. 37-38.)

¹⁶ Daines suggests that the issue was preserved because he raised it in opposition to Defendants' first motion for summary judgment. (Appellant's Br. 34 n. 106.) But he did not raise the issue at trial. *See 438 Main St. v. Easy Heat, Inc.*, 2004 UT 72, ¶ 51, 99 P.3d 801, 813 ("Issues that are not raised at trial are usually deemed waived."). Accordingly, the trial court never had the opportunity to actually consider the issue. *See Brookside Mobile Home Park, Ltd. v. Peebles*, 2002 UT 48, ¶ 14, 48 P.3d 968, 972 ("[O]nce trial counsel has raised an issue before the trial court, and the trial court has considered the issue, the issue is preserved for appeal."). More importantly, Daines did not offer any evidence at trial to show his different understanding of the parties covered by the Release. To the contrary, the undisputed evidence established that ASC Group was a member of the Surgical Center and that Daines knew it when the Release was signed. In the absence of any contrary evidence from Daines, no reasonable jury could conclude that there was not a meeting of the minds concerning the parties covered by the Release.

- The Release is **unambiguous** on its face and does not discharge ASC Group from claims other than breach of contract. (Appellant's Br. 38-39.)
- The Release is **ambiguous** as to the identity of the parties released and the scope of the claims released. (Appellant's Br. 39-41.)
- The Release is **ambiguous** concerning the scope and meaning of the "integration" clause. (Appellant's Br. 41-43.)

For the reasons set forth below, each of these arguments should be rejected, and the directed verdict should be affirmed.

A. The Release Is Unambiguous on Its Face and Discharged All of Daines' Claims Against ASC Group.

The Release is a contract and is governed by the general rules applied in contract actions. *See Butcher v. Gilroy*, 744 P.2d 311, 312 (Utah Ct. App. 1987). "In interpreting a contract, the intentions of the parties are controlling." *Winegar v. Froerer Corp.*, 813 P.2d 104, 108 (Utah 1991). "If the contract is in writing and the language is not ambiguous, the intention of the parties must be determined from the words of the agreement." *Id.* at 108.

"Whether an ambiguity exists in a contract is a question of law." *Alf v. State Farm Fire & Cas. Co.*, 850 P.2d 1272, 1274 (Utah 1993). "A contract provision is ambiguous if it is capable of more than one reasonable interpretation." *Winegar*, 813 P.2d at 108. "A contract may be ambiguous because it is unclear, omits terms, or 'the terms used to express the intention of the parties may be understood to have two or more plausible meanings.'" *Saleh v. Farmers Ins. Exch.*, 2006 UT 20, ¶ 15, 133 P.3d 428, 432 (quoting *Alf*, 850 P.2d at 1274). Words in a contract are not ambiguous "simply because one party seeks to endow them with a different interpretation according to his or her own interests."

Id. ¶ 17. “[T]o merit consideration as an interpretation that creates an ambiguity, the alternative rendition ‘must be based upon the usual and natural meaning of the language used and may not be the result of a forced or strained construction.’” *Id.* (quoting *Home Sav. & Loan v. Aetna Cas. & Sur. Co.*, 817 P.2d 341, 367 (Utah Ct. App. 1991)).

Daines signed the Release in December 2001, agreeing that in exchange for the payment of \$50,000 he would release:

[The Surgical Center] or any of its members from any and all liabilities and or claims in connection with services provided by [Daines] for the due diligence, acquisition of real estate, or any other services rendered to date for West Valley Surgical Center, or on behalf of its members, for the organization, development and operation of an ambulatory surgical center in the West Valley and any services connected with the same.

(Trial Ex. 10). The Release goes on to state that it “encompasses and satisfies any prior agreements and discussions whether written or verbal [by the Surgical Center] or any of its members.” (*Id.*)

On its face, the Release includes any claims arising out of any services Daines performed relating to the Surgical Center, including any services he provided to the members of the Surgical Center during its due diligence, organization, and development (i.e., before they were actually “members”). The plain language of the Release further satisfies any then-existing agreements Daines may have had with the Surgical Center or any of its members (including the MOU and the oral agreement). The Release was conditioned only upon the payment of certain sums by or on behalf of the Surgical Center, and Daines admits that he received these payments. (Tr. 102, 163.) It is undisputed that ASC Group was a member of the Surgical Center along with the

individual physicians when the Release was signed, and that Daines knew full well who the members were when he signed it.

Daines initially concedes that the Release is unambiguous and can be interpreted as a matter of law. (Appellant's Br. 33-38.) He argues, however, that the Release did not discharge ASC Group in its "pre-Surgical Center" legal capacity. This argument must be rejected.

As a threshold matter, the issue of whether there is a legally recognizable distinction between "pre-Surgical Center ASC" and "Surgical Center ASC," insofar as the Release is concerned, was raised for the first time on appeal. The argument was not properly preserved below, and should not be considered on appeal.¹⁷

In any event, there is no evidence in the record to support the distinction Daines attempts to make. The Release uses the phrase "Surgical Center and/or its members" to identify the group of persons being released. The Surgical Center is a Utah Limited Liability Company, and the term "member" is defined by the Utah Revised Limited

¹⁷ At oral argument on Defendants' motion for directed verdict, Daines argued that the Release of the Surgical Center did not apply because the eight Share agreement "was a deal between Mr. Daines and ASC, a totally separate entity." (Tr. 290.) Daines made no distinction between "pre-Surgical Center ASC" and "Surgical Center ASC," and never argued that the Release applied to ASC Group in some legal capacities but not others. (*Id.*). Indeed, Daines argued that the Release did not apply to ASC Group *at all*. (*Id.* at 275-77.) Daines claims that the issue was raised in his memorandum opposing Defendants' first motion for summary judgment. (Appellant's Br. 34 n. 107.) A review of that memorandum reveals no discussion of "pre-Surgical Center ASC" or "Surgical Center ASC," however, and no assertion that the Release applied to ASC in some capacities but not others. (R. at 122-79.) Even if the issue had been raised in the opposing memorandum, it would not have preserved the issue for appeal. *See infra* n. 10.

Liability Company Act to mean “a person [individual or entity] with an ownership right in the company.” Utah Code Ann. § 48-2c-102(14), (17). It is undisputed that ASC Group and the individual physicians were “members” of the Surgical Center at the time the Release was executed, and that Daines knew it. As such, there can be no ambiguity as to the identity of the parties being released.¹⁸

Indeed, if Daines’ interpretation were correct—that the Release only applied to “post-Surgical Center” obligations—there would have been no reason to include the term “members” in the Release. A Utah limited liability company is a legal entity distinct from its members. *See* Utah Code Ann. § 48-2c-104. Utah law makes it clear that members of a limited liability company are not personally liable for the obligations or liabilities of the company (except for certain exceptions that do not apply here). *See* Utah Code Ann. §§ 48-2c-601, 602. Accordingly, the members of a Utah limited liability company are released by operation of law if the company itself is released.

¹⁸ The logical fallacy in Daines’ argument was revealed during oral argument on the motions for directed verdict, during which Daines’ counsel suggested that the Release would apply to the individual physician members without distinguishing between their “pre-member” and “member” status. *See* Tr. at 275 (“[The Release] is perfectly effective with respect[] to claims that Mr. Daines might have had against the doctors. We’re not suing the doctors”); *id.* at 277 (“There was no testimony whatsoever, from any witness, that the release appl[ies] to anything else but claims by Mr. Daines against the doctors or against the center.”). As with ASC Group, the individual doctors are not referenced by name in the Release. If the Release applies to the individual physicians at all it is because they, like ASC Group, were members of the Surgical Center. There is no rational basis to distinguish ASC Group from the individual physicians, or to argue that the Release applies to some of the Surgical Center’s “members” and not to others.

“Established rules of contract interpretation require consideration of each of its provisions in connection with others and, if possible, to give effect to all; effect is to be given entire agreement without ignoring any part thereof.” *Minshew v. Chevron Oil Co.*, 575 P.2d 192, 192 (Utah 1978). The only reason to include “members” in the Release is to make sure that, in addition to releasing Daines’ claims against the Surgical Center (which by operation of law also releases members in their capacity as members), he was also releasing any claims he had against the members in a personal capacity that fell within the scope of the Release. Thus, the effect of identifying both the Surgical Center and its members as parties to be covered by the Release is to preclude the very argument Daines is now making.

Daines’ argument, although expressed in terms of the legal capacity of the parties being released, is really directed to the intended scope of the Release. He argues that because the eight Shares agreement was made in December 2000, before the Surgical Center was actually formed as a limited liability company, and before ASC Group became a “member,” the Release does not apply to “pre-Surgical Center ASC.” But this argument cannot stand in the face of the express language of the Release. The Release specifically includes claims for services relating to “due diligence,” and for the “organization [and] development” of the Surgical Center. (Trial Ex. 35.) These services are, by definition, “pre-Surgical Center,” that is, they pre-dated formation of the Surgical Center. Since the express language of the Release includes claims for services that had to have been rendered prior to the time the Surgical Center was formed as an LLC, and before it had any members, Daines cannot now argue that the Release does not apply to

claims against “pre-Surgical Center ASC.” Likewise, because the express language of the Release encompasses both claims for “pre-membership” services (due diligence, organization, and development) and “post-membership” services (acquisition of real estate and operation of the Surgical Center), it will not support the interpretation Daines is now trying to force upon it.¹⁹

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